
 
 

 
PROCUREMENT DEPARTMENT 

4 WORLD TRADE CENTER 
150 GREENWICH STREET, 21st FLOOR 

NEW YORK, NY 10007 
 

May 29, 2015 
 

ADDENDUM #2 
 
TO PROSPECTIVE BIDDER(S) ON BID #42388 – World Trade Center (WTC) Flood 
Mitigation and Resiliency Improvement Program – Bollard Protection System at 
Vehicular Security Center 
 

New Bid Due Date: June 5, 2015 at 2:00PM 
 

 
The following changes are hereby made to the Bid Solicitation Document: 
 
 
I. CONTRACT DRAWINGS 

 
A. The following Contract Drawings have been revised.  Please delete the Contract 

Drawings of these numbers now in your possession and substitute therefor the new 
Contract Drawings. 

 
G002       Location and Limit of Work Plan                  
G003     Index of Contract Drawings 
G006       Emergency Egress Plan 
S106      Liberty Street BPS Plan and Elevation - 2 
S107        Liberty Street BPS Plan and Elevation - 3 
S109        Greenwich Street Plan and Elevation 
S201       Cedar Street BPS Details  - 1 
S206        Driveway BPS Details – 6  
MT104   Maintenance and Protection of Traffic Liberty St 
MT105   Maintenance and Protection of Traffic Greenwich St 
 
 

B. The following new Contract Drawings have been added to the set of Contract Drawings.   
 

S114 Greenwich Street to Building Perimeter Flood Barrier and 
Elevation 

S209 Liberty Street and Cedar Street BPS to Perimeter Flood 
Barrier Details 

 
CLICK HERE to access the revised and new Contract Drawings. 

http://www.panynj.gov/business-opportunities/pdf/Section1_42388.pdf


II. CHANGES TO THE CONTRACT BOOK 
 

A. DIVISION 1, GENERAL PROVISIONS 

a. In the Table of Contents add the following new Specification: 

 

05510  PERIMETER FLOOD BARRIER 
 

b. In Section 7 entitled “Contract Drawings” add the following new Contract 
Drawings: 

 

S114 Greenwich Street to Building Perimeter Flood Barrier and 
Elevation 

S209 Liberty Street and Cedar Street BPS to Perimeter Flood 
Barrier Details 

 

B. SPECIFICATIONS 

a. The following specification have been revised.  Please delete the specifications 
of these numbers now in your possession and substitute therefor the new 
specifications. 

 

SECTION TITLE 

05230 OFF-SITE LABORATORY TESTING 
05520 FLOODWALL SYSTEM 
05540 FLOODWALL INITIAL INSTALLATION, 

DISASSEMBLY AND STORAGE 
 

b. The following new specification has been added to the Contract Documents. 

 

SECTION TITLE 

05510  PERIMETER FLOOD BARRIER 
 

CLICK HERE to access the revised and new Specifications. 
 

 
III. ATTACHMENT G – REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 

 
Attachment G has been revised.   
 

CLICK HERE to access the revised Attachment G and all Reference 
Documents. 
 

http://www.panynj.gov/business-opportunities/pdf/Section2_42388.pdf
http://www.panynj.gov/business-opportunities/pdf/Section3_42388.pdf


 
IV. BIDDER’S QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
 

The following information is made available in response to questions submitted by 
prospective Bidder(s).  It should not be deemed to answer all questions that have been 
submitted by Bidder(s) to the Port Authority.  It addresses only those questions which 
the Port Authority has deemed to require additional information and/or clarification.  
The fact that information has not been supplied with respect to a question asked by a 
Bidder(s) does not mean or imply, nor should it be deemed to mean or imply, any 
meaning, construction, or implication with respect to the terms of the Bid Solicitation 
Document. 

 
The Port Authority makes no representations, warranties or guarantees that the 
information contained herein is accurate, complete or timely or that such information 
accurately represents the conditions that would be encountered during the performance 
of the Agreement. The furnishing of such information by the Port Authority shall not 
create or be deemed to create any obligation or liability upon it for any reason 
whatsoever and each Bidder, by submitting its proposal, expressly agrees that it has not 
relied upon the foregoing information, and that it shall not hold the Port Authority liable 
or responsible therefor in any manner whatsoever.  Accordingly, nothing contained 
herein and no representation, statement or promise, of the Port Authority, its directors, 
officers, agents, representatives or employees, oral or in writing, shall impair or limit 
the effect of the warranties of the Bidder(s) required by this Proposal or Agreement and 
the Bidder(s) agrees that it shall not hold the Port Authority liable or responsible 
therefor in any manner whatsoever. 

 
 
Question #2 
 

Dwg S206 at S|6/S103 right side shows “EXISTING FILL.”  For purposes of removal 
and disposal may we assume that “existing fill” is soil material and that it continues 
uniformly to the left to the CONSTRUCTION JOINT? 

Answer #2 
 

The existing condition at section S6/S103 has soil material (as existing fill) which 
extends over the entire segment of the 12” thick garage ceiling slab.  Existing soil 
material will conform to Specification 2221 Section 2.01, A, 1. 

Question #3 
 

Dwg S206 at details S2 and S3 shows a cross-hatch legend immediately to the left 
of the new concrete foundation.  Reference to S|6/S103 on the right hand side 
indicates an identical legend to be “EXISTING FILL.”  However at detail S|6/S103 
immediately to the left of the new concrete foundation is shown to be “CONCRETE 
TRANSFER SLAB.”  Which one is correct? 

Answer #3 
 

See revised drawing S206 for corrected hatching in details S2 and S3. 

Question #4 
 

Dwg G004 GENERAL NOTE 2. describes the SURVEY requirements for the Bollard 
Protection System fabrication.  For measuring purposes may we assume that the 
bollard cover is concentrically located over the bollard; or will it be necessary to 
remove the bollard covers to insure that the measurements are accurate? 

Answer #4 
 

Remove the bollard covers to ensure that the measurements are accurate. 



Question #5 
 

Could you please consider a postponement of the bid date for 1 (one) week to 
permit investigation and review of proposals from “or equal” alternate suppliers? 

Answer #5 
 

Bid due date is extended to Friday, June 5. 

Question #6 
 

We are aware that the completion time for the project is 270 calendar days.  This 
completion time extends past the year 2015 hurricane season.  Considering that 
the urgency for hurricane readiness is not a factor, could you please extend the bid 
date for one week? 

Answer #6 
 

Bid due date is extended to Friday, June 5. 

Question #7 
 

Specification 05500 MODIFY STEEL BOLLARD first page (the pages are not 
numbered) at 1.01 C. says “Holes shall be drilled in steel and concrete for Type 1 
bollards…” “Removal of concrete in the stress free zone inside the Type 1 bollards 
via a 15 lb chipping hammer will be permitted upon approval of the Authority.”  
Referring to Dwg S201 at TYPE 1 BOLLARD (TYP) there is no concrete shown.  
Please identify where and how many of the existing Type 1 Bollards are containing 
concrete to be removed. 

Answer #7 
 

All Type 1 Bollard cross sections are filled with concrete which will need to be 
removed (See additional reference documents). 

Question #8 
 

Specification Section 05230 fourth page (the pages are not numbered) contains a 
section 1.5 TEST LOAD CASES; the fifth page (the pages are not numbered) 
contains a section 1.5 QUALITY CONTROL TESTING AND QUALITY ASSURANCE.  
Both are numbered 1.5 which seems incorrect.  Is it incorrect? 

Answer #8 
 

See revised Specification with corrected numbering.   

Question #9 
 

Spec Section 05520 sixth page (the pages are not numbered) at 2.2 STOP LOGS, A. 
says “…All stop logs shall have two (2) rubber seals.”  But Reference Document 
No.4 shows a photo of a “REGULAR GASKET” and there is only one not two (2). Is 
‘rubber seal’ and ‘rubber gasket’ the same meaning?  Is there a reason only one 
seal/gasket is shown on the photo?  

Answer #9 
 

Each flood log shall have two rubber gaskets/seals attached to the bottom side.  
See additional reference documents for picture of a cross section of a flood log for 
clarification.  The “continuous gasket” goes underneath the floodlogs and BPS 
posts and is not attached. 

Question #10 
 

Spec Section 05520 sixth page (the pages are not numbered) at 2.2 STOP LOGS, A. 
says  “…The rubber seal side of the stop log shall be positioned facing down.”  Does 
that mean to say “the rubber seal edge of the stop log shall be positioned facing 
down”? 

Answer #10 
 

The side of the stop log with the two rubber seals shall be positioned facing down.  
Another way to say that is that the edges of the stop log with the rubber seals shall 
be positioned facing down.  See additional reference documents for picture of a 
cross section of a flood log for clarification.   

Question #11 
 

Specification 05500 MODIFY STEEL BOLLARD second page (the pages are not 
numbered) at 2 B.  says “Reference Contract No WTC-324.359 for steel bollard and 
bollard cover specifications.”  Do we really need this specification?  Where can we 
find this specification? 



Answer #11 
 

See additional reference documents. 

Question #12 
 

Specification 05500 MODIFY STEEL BOLLARD second page (the pages are not 
numbered) at 3 A. fourth sentence says “Upon reinstallation of the cover prior to 
securing to the collar…”  Please provide further details about the ‘collar’. 

Answer #12 
 

Collar is at the bottom of the bollard.  See additional reference documents. 

Question #13 
 

Specification 05520 FLOODWALL SYSTEM, eleventh page (the pages are not 
numbered) at 3.5, A., 3., f. says “Long Term Storage, Clean-up and Stop Piling.”  
Please describe the requirements for ‘Stop Piling.” 

Answer #13 
 

Typo.  See revised specification. 

Question #14 
 

Dwg G004 SCOPE note 7. says “STORE THE FLOODWALL…OFFSITE BEFORE 
INSTALLATION.  THE AUTHORITY WILL NOTIFY THE CONTRACTOR AT LEAST ONE 
WEEK PRIOR TO THE REQUIRED  DELIVERY AND INSTALLATION DATE.”  SCOPE note 
8. Says “GENERAL ACCEPTANCE OF THE FLOODWALL SYSTEM WILL OCCUR UPON 
COMPLETE NSTALLATION, REVIEW AND ACCEPTANCE…”  For purposes of 
financing, cash flow, supplier and subcontractor payments, upon what schedule 
may the Contractor expect progress and partial payments for the materials? 

Answer #14 
 

The Authority will make progress payments monthly. 

Question #15 
 

Dwgs S201 thru S205, at the top half of the drawing show the various proposed 8’ 
high and 5’ high BPS posts attached to the existing bollards. 
All of these posts appear to be a W beam with “depth” of 8” (by scale) 
Dwg S206 at S5/S103 shows the post to be “W8 POST (SEE NOTE 2).”  Note 2. says 
“ALL DIMENSIONS AND SIZES WERE DEVELOPED ASSUMING A W8X31 POST TO 
SUPPORT THE FLOODWALL…”  Additional evidence that the posts are W8 
members. 
 
However Dwg S201 at detail TYPE 1 BOLLARD (TYP) and at detail TYPE 2 BOLLARD 
(TYP) both show a W member significantly ‘deeper’ than 8”, in fact they scale to be 
15” deep!  The scale shown is a rather large scale (1 ½” = 1’-0”).  Recognizing that 
scaling is not guaranteed to be accurate, this drawn detail is extremely misleading 
in terms of the size and shape.  Is there a reason that the W member was drawn 
exaggerated in beam depth and flange width? 
 

  



Answer #15 
 

The post sizing shall be designed as per the requirements outline in the contract 
drawings and specifications.  For the Tower One BPS Floodwall System Design, the 
posts were W8x31.  The “TYPE 1 BOLLARD (TYP)” and “TYPE 2 BOLLARD (TYP)” are 
shown for concept only to aid in the comprehension of design requirements (shim 
location, connections, etc).  They are not to scale- the scale should be removed. 
See revised drawing S201. 
 

Question #16 
 

Dwg S206 Note 2. says “ALL DIMENSIONS AND SIZES WERE DEVELOPED ASSUMING 
A W8X31 POST TO SUPPORT THE FLOODWALL SYSTEM AND DETAILS SIMILAR TO 
THE TOWER 1 BPS SHOP DRAWINGS…”  We realize that the documents advise that 
the Tower 1 Shop Drawings will be made available after award, but they would be 
valuable during the bidding stage to approximate handling and assembly weights 
in order to estimate the cost of manpower and equipment in erection.  Please 
reconsider and make the shop drawings available to the bidders. 
 

Answer #16 
 

Tower one shop drawings were used as an assumption for design.  Final design will 
be determined based on verification of actual field conditions at the VSC. 

Question #17 
 

Specification 05520 FLOODWALL SYSTEM, fourth page (the pages are not 
numbered) at 1.4., B., 3. says “Analyzes pad thickness required at each location…”  
4. Says “Identifies the continuous gasket sizing and minimum and maximum 
compression range…”  Please explain what and where the “pad” is to be placed as 
compared to the “continuous gasket.” 

Answer #17 
 

1.4, B., 3. Is referring to the Neoprene Pad under the bracing shoe as shown in the 
contract drawings. 
 
1.4, B, 4. Is referring to the continuous gasket that runs beneath the length of the 
floodwall system (underneath the floodwall posts and floodlogs) as shown in the 
contract drawings.  
 
(For Example see S203 detail S4 | S104) 

Question #18 
 

The Table of Contents beginning on page vi for DIVISION 1 – GENERAL PROVISIONS 
shows SECTION 39 as CONTRACTORS QUALITY PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS 
supposed to be on page 171, but this heading appears as SECTION 42 on page 171. 
There is a SECTION 40 ASBESTOS AND OTHER HAZARDOUS MATERIALS appearing 
on page 168 but it is not listed on the Table of Contents. There is a SECTION 41 
TRANSIT OPERATIONS appearing on page 168 but is not listed on the Table of 
Contents. Is there a purpose to leaving Sections 40 and 41 off of the Table of 
Contents? 

Answer #18 
 

Sections 40 & 41 are not applicable to this project. 



Question #19 
 

Specification 05500 MODIFY STEEL BOLLARD at the second page (pages are not 
numbered) PART 3 A. says “Prior to steel bollard modification, remove bollard 
cover and store it during modification.  Remove and discard foam insulation.  
Modify the steel bollard.  Upon reinstallation of the cover prior to securing it to the 
collar provide equal replacement foam insulation to the top of the steel bollard. 
Reinstall the cover to preconstruction condition…”  
It sounds like this is might be saying “reinstall the cover prior to the FLOODWALL 
INITIAL INSTALLATION, then remove it again for the initial installation, then 
reinstall it again after the disassembly.”  There will be a lot of wasted motion with 
the reinstallation, foam, then re-removal prior to initial installation.  Is this 
specifically what is in mind? 

Answer #19 
 

Reinstall in between. 

Question #20 
 

To maximize field efficiency we would expect to remove approx. 20 to 25 bollard 
covers, survey the plan, profile and heights of the bollards, survey the locations of 
the strut shoes, the length of the bracing, the lengths of the tension rods, the 
length of the (rear) horizontal braces, while modifying the bollards and then 
reinstall the bollard covers.  We would then proceed to the next batch of 20 to 25 
bollards with the same sequence.  Would there be any reason why this scheduling 
would be objectionable? 
 

Answer #20 
 

As long as project requirements in the contract documents are met, appears 
satisfactory. 

Question #21 
 

There are approximately 91 Bollard Covers to be removed, cleaned, stored, 
reinstalled, removed, cleaned, stored, reinstalled.  Please advise the weight of 
these cover so we can evaluate cost of equipment and manpower for the 
preceding activities. 
 
There are approximately 56 Type 1 Bollards requiring drilling through the steel, 
and approximately 35 Type 2 Bollards requiring drilling through the steel.  Please 
advise the thicknesses and if possible advise the alloys of steel so we can 
determine the cost to accomplish the drilling. 
 
We would like to direct your attention to Note #21 on Draw.G004(Sht.2of32) . 
Please provide details of existing bollard covers which need to be removed and 
reinstalled during performance of this contract. 
 

Answer #21 
 

See additional reference documents. 

Question #22 
 

Please advise where Specification Section 02920C”Planting Soil Mixes” applies on 
this project?  
 

Answer #22 
 

02920C “Planting Soil Mixes” applies to material in any of the planters within the 
project site (for example, the planters on Cedar Street called out on plan sheets 
S102 and S102.) 
 



Question #23 
 

What is the time of the beginning of project? 
 

Answer #23 
 

Project kick-off is scheduled for on or about August 1, 2015. 

Question #24 
 

Analysis of bid Unit Item #8  and specification section 05230 calls for Off-Site 
Laboratory Testing. What specific testing company do we have to use? 

Answer #24 
 

PANYNJ is not specifying a testing company. 

Question #25 
 

Please confirm that drilling of existing bollards is in our scope of work. 
 

Answer #25 
 

Drilling of existing bollards is in the scope. 

Question #26 
 

Drawing G002: at south/east corner of VSC building there is a line of BPS running 
from bollard #211 to the west, but referenced drawing S109 does not indicate any 
BPS. Please clarify. 

Answer #26 
 

See revised Drawing G002. 

 
This communication shall be initialed by you and annexed to your response to the above-
referenced Bid upon submission. 
 
In case any Respondent fails to conform to these instructions, its submission will nevertheless 
be construed as though this communication had been so physically annexed and initialed. 
 
QUESTIONS CONCERNING THIS ADDENDUM MAY BE ADDRESSED TO JOANN 
SPIRITO, WHO CAN BE REACHED AT (212) 435-5640 or at jspirito@panynj.gov.  
 
 
     THE PORT AUTHORITY OF NY & NJ  
 
 
     RICHARD PEREZ 

PROCUREMENT MANAGER 
FTA/WTC SITE PROJECTS 

            
 
RESPONDENT’S FIRM NAME: ____________________________________________ 
 
INITIALED: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
DATE: _________________________________________________________________ 

mailto:jspirito@panynj.gov
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